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STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

We, Boldbaatar Ochirsuren, being the Chiaf Exacutive Officer of LendMN NBF| JSC (the "Company”), and
Otgaongerel Dembereldovd, being the Chief Accountam! primarily respunsible for the financial management
of ihe Company, do hereby state thal, in our opinion, the accompanying financial statements sat out
between pages 1 and 43 present farly. in all matenal respects, the fmancial position of the Company as al

31 December 2018 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Internabional Financial Reporting Standards.

Boldbaatar Ochirsuren wmmhmmm
Chiaf Exacuive Officer Chial i

Date 3 February 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of LendMN MBFI JSC

Dpinion

We have audited the financial staterments of LandMM NBF1 JSC (the "Company”), which comprise the
statement of financlal position as at 31 Decernber 2018 and the statement of profil or loss and other
comprehansiva (ncome, the statement of changes in equity and the statemenl of cash fiows for the year
then ended, and notes 1o the finandal statements, induding a summary of significant accounting pabcies.

In our opinkon, the financia statermenis presant faidy, in all matenal respects, the financial position of the
Compary as at 31 December 2019, and its financial performance and cash fiows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our avdit in sccordsnca with International Standards on Auditing (*I5As"). Our responsibiiities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Respansibiitios for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are indapencent of the Company in accordance with the Inlemational
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “IESBA Code”),
and we have fulfilied our other ethical respansibilit es in accordarice with the IESBA Code, We beliave that
the audit evidaice we have oblained is sufficient and appropriale I provite a-tasis for our opinion

Key Audit Matters

Key audt matters are those matlers thal, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of tha currenl period. These malters were addressed in the context of our audit
ol the financia stalements as a whole, and in forming our opinion theraon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our description of how our sudil addressed the matter is
provided in thal contesi

We have fulfilled the responsibiliies describad in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. including in relation to the mater Accordingly, our audil included the
performance of procedures designed o respond Lo our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial stalaments. The resuits of our audil procedures. including the procadures performed o sddress
the matter below, provide the basis for aur audit opinion on the accompanying financial statemants.

ETETHET TPE F | =TT 8 SAET LEHE |
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONT'D.)

To the sharesholders of LendMN NBFI JSC

Remove Watermark Now.

Key Audit Matters (Cont'd.)

Tha impairment of |oans and advances 1o
customers s estimated by the Company's
management through the application of judgement
and use of highly sublective assumptions

Due to significance of loans and advances o
customers, represanting over B% of the
Company’s tolal assets as at 31 December 2019,
and the rdaied estimabon uncarainly wa
considered impairment of loans and advances 1o
customers as a key audit mattar.

The mpairment method & basec on a forward
looking Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") approach.
Elemants of tha ECL model requires signifigsant
estimales and assumplions incuding:

= Elaging of hnancial assets,

Impairment of loans and advances fo cusfomers

Our audit procedures included evaluating the
methodologes, inpuls and assumplions used by
the Company in iis ECL model in calculation of
impairment of loans and advances to customers

For gssessment of impairment allowance of loans
and advances to cuslomers 85 of 31 Decembear
2018, we evalualed Ihe Company's ECL model
including the assassment of basis for dassification
of exposures inlo the 3 slages, and the
appropriatenass of the PD, LGD and EAD
determinabion and the foresand-looking
macrosconomic  varables Incorporated in the
moded

!111 lasting the appropriateness of the stege
“olassificetions, we have lested loan overdue
information and ofher related information

«  Development of ECL modals and the choica |

of inputs, induding probability of default
("PD") and loss given default ("LGD")

=  Determingtion of the Exposure at Default
{"EAD"), including the credit conwvarsion factor
for the undrawn loan commitments.

. Datermination of associalions babween
macroeconomic scenario, economic nputs,
and the effect on nputs 10 the ECL
celculation; and

= Belection of forasrd-looking macroaconomic
scenarios and their probability weightings. 1o
darive lhe economic inpuls into the ECL
rmodel,

Ralevant disclosures of the accounting pabcy and
critical accounting estimales and judcgements are
included in notes 2 and 4 o the financal
statements, respectively.

Dither relevant disciosures of loans and advances

We compared the key inputs to the ECL model lo
the Company's internal avallable historicsl data,
extermally available indusiry, financial and
economic data, Qurtesting included the followngs:

» Tested the accuracy of internal datz applied for
the calculalion of hisioncal PD and LGD;

« Checked the parameters 1o exlernal data
sources where available, including the monthly
average USDMWNT exchange rate usad in
multiphe scenano analyses, and

« Checked completeness of the EAD including the
accuracy of the credil conversion factors to the
historical data.

We also considered the consistency of judgement
applied in the kay Inputs to Ie ECL model [

We assessed the adequacy of the related
disciosure in the notes to the financal slalemeants

o the ocustomers amngd relsted coredit nsk o
management are incuded in notes 6, 12 and 22.3 |

to the financial statements, respectivity.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONT'D.)

To he shareholders of LendMN NBFI JSC

Other Information included In the Annual Report

The Direclors and executives are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
other sections of the Annual Report nol including the financial statemants and the auditor's report thareon
(“the Otnher Sections’), which are expected 10 be made available after that date

Our opinkon on the financial statements does not cover the ofher infomaiion and we do not exprass anmy
form of assurance conclumsan therean.

In connection with our audii of the financial slatements, our responsibility s to read the ofher information
and in doing so to consider whether the other information is materially Inconsisient with the financial
statements, or our knowledga obtained in the audit or otherwize appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other infformation thal we oblained prior (o the dale of this
audit reporl, we conclude that there is a malenal misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to reoort in this regard.

VWhien we read the Olheyr Sections of the Anpoal Repord, il we concude that there s 8 matens misstalemeant
tharein, we are raquited to communicale the maltar to those charged with govemance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparatior and fair-presentation of the financisl statements in
accorcance with IFRSs, and for such inlernal control as management delarmines is necessary to enable
the preparation of finencial statements that are free from material missialement, whether cue o fraud or
arror

In praparing the financial statements, managemant is responsible for assaseing the Company’s ability to
conlinue as a going concerr, disciosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concam and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Compary o to ceasa
operations, or has no realishic slematve but 1o do so

Those charged with governance ara resporsble for overseaing the Company's financial reporiing procass.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statoments

Dur objectves are lo obtain reasonable assurance about whather the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatemnent, whether due to fraud or error, and (o i2sue an aeditor s report thet indudes
OLT PG,

Reasonable gssurance is @ high level of assurance, bul is nol a guarantes (hat an audit conducled In
acrordance with |SAs will always detect 3 material misstatemant when it sxists. Misstatamants can anss
from fraud or error and are considerad material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expacied o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of thase financal stalements.

& il e o) Pl e 1 e | el
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONT'D.)
To the shareholders of LendMN NBFI JSC

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements ({Cont'd.)

As part of an audit in accordance with 1545, wa axerciss professionsl judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughoul the audil. We also:

+  |dentify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statemeants, wheiher due 1o fraud
or error, design and perform audil procadures responsiva 1o those risks, and obiain audit evidence that
s sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The rigk of not delecting a material
misstatement resulling from fraud s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, Intentional cmissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of inlemal control

v Dbtain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the awdit in order to design auwdit procedures Lhat
are appropriala In the croumsiances, but not for the purposs of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

Evalualié (he approprisleness ol scoounting policies used and (e reasonablensss of accounbng
eslimates and related discipsures made by management

Conclude on the appropriateness of managemenl's use of he going conoem basis of accounting and,
basad on the audit avidence oblaned, whelher a matena uncertainty axists related to avenis or
conditions thel may cast significant doubt anthe Company's ehility.to continise as a going concem. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we.are reqlUired to draw atténtion in our auditor's repart
to the relaled disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disciosures are imadequate, (o modify
our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidénce obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. Howevar, future evenisior conditions may cause the Company io casse Io continue as a gaing
COMGCET.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, induding the
disclnsures, and wheather the financial statemants represent the underlying transactions and events in
a8 manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amang other matlens, the plannad scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Induding any significant deficencies in intemal control
that we identify during cur audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with refevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matlers
thal may reasonably be thaughl io bear on our irdependence, and where applicable, relaled safeguards

From the malters communicaled with those charged vath govamances, we datarmins those matiers that e
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefora the key
audit matiers. We describe these matiers in our audilor's report uniess law or regulation preciudes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in axtramely rare circumstances, we determine thal a matter should
not be communiceted in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so would reasonably be
expecied lo oubweigh the public interes! benefils of such commurncation.

N e R T [ Tl s
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INDEPENDENT ALUDITOR'S REPORT (CONT'D.)

To the shareholders of LendMN NBFI JSC

Oither Mattar

This report Is made solely lo the sharehoiders of the Company, as a body. In sccordance wilh the audit
requested by the shareholders in accordance with Article 94 of ihe Company Law of Mangoiia and for no
other purpose. Wa do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this repori

Approved by

P, i

Adrian Chu
Partner

Ulaanbaatar, Mongalia
Date: 3 February 2020

e Ll LT LI T T s e
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LendMN NBFI JSC
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

2018 2018

PoNs MNT 000 MNT000
Interast and similar income b 18,3217 082 7,143 318
Inleras! expense 5 (4,654.241) (511,934)
Met interest and similar income 13,666,841 6,631,385
Credit loss expense B (1,618.802) (408,525)
Met interest and similar income after allowance for
Adminisirative and operating expanses T (6,585 128) {3,278 084)
Cither incomeTexpansa), net B (451,538) (78,446)
Profit before income tax 6,021,375 2,865,350
Incoma [ax axpanss b | {1,121, 18E) {305,037}
Prefit for tha year, represanting total comprehensive =
income attributable lo equity holders of the Parent 4,910,189 s e el
Earnings per share MHNT MMNT
Equity holders of the parent
Basic and diluted eamings per share 10 B.15 3.37

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statemants, &
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2019
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
o MNT"000 MNT'000
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents 11 2 382,196 4.218,150
Loans and advances o customers 12 48 457 676 19 198 366
Derivative financial instruments 13 130,642 -
Deferred tax assels 03 458,186 -
Other assels 14 4,571,315 124,423
56,590,015 23,541,939
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Irtangible assels 15 342,002 387,784
Property and equipment 18 385 BA2 258,051
Right of use assets 17 716,219 -
Prepayments 18 6,835 135,663
1,510,838 781,488
TOTAL ASSETS 58,100,953 24,323 437
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 19 22,475,285 8,572,376
Lease liabilitias 17 170827 -
Oiher [iahilities 20 1,247,000 868 055
Deferrad tax liability 0.3 23,124
Cutrent irncormie lax alality 9.2 151,385 ¥,680
34,117,321 9,449,021
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bomowings 18 6,104,737 1,620,041
Lease liabilities 17 Ba0.417 =
6785154 1,520,041
40,902,475 10,969,062
TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQuITY
Share capital 1.9 10,756,858 10,756,859
Treasury shares 21.2 (266,086) .
Other reserve 21.3 57.348 §7.348
Retained earnings 6,650 357 2.540 168
TOTAL EQUITY 17,198,478 13,354,375
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 58,100,953 24 323 43T

The accompamying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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LendMN NBFI JSC

Statermant of Changes (n Equily

F_-urh;urlndld.l;! December 20109
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Share Treasury Other Retained Total
capital shares reserve eamings equity
MNT 000 MNT 000 MNT 000 MNT D00 MNT 000
(Mote 21.1) (Mote 21.2) (Mote 21.3)
AL 1 January 2018 6,000,000 = - [20,145) 5,978,855
Tolal comprehonsive -
income: - = 2,960,313 2,560,313
for the year
Issiance of ordinagry - s 5
shares by listing 5,000,000 5,000,000
Listing redatesd dinescl - 2 1
expenss (223,141) (243,141)
Equity-settied share-hased g - .
paymeant transachion — 57348 87,348
At 31 December 2018 10,756,859 - 87,348 2540168 13,354,375
Total comprehansive y .
incame for the year - 4,910,188 4,910,183
Dividend (Note 21) & - - (BOD,000) [BOD,000)
Treasury shares - (266,086) - - (266,086)
At 31 December 2019 10,756,859 (266,086) 57,348 6,650,357  17,198.478
Tha accompanying notes farm an intagral part of the financlal statements. ]
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Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended 31 Decemibar 2019
20139 2018

i MNT'000 MNT'000
Cash Mlows from operating activities
Profit bafare tax G,031.375 2,865,350
Adjustrmenis far
Impaimment on loans and advanta_um customers B 1,592,006 392,310
Li':!*"m““““" B8 Prapety Snd-equipment SR nght o 7 321,072 50,464
Amortization of imangible assets 7 46,332 33032
Impairmant on undrawn commitmanis it 26,706 16,216
Accretion interest on lease liability .5 167,108 =
Interest expense on Domrowings g 4 487133 511,834
Fair value gain of derivative financial instrumants 14.8 (130,642) .
Lhrvrssalisead) foneign eoochenoes loss 8 187,285 -
Share-based contribuion 21.3 - 57,348
Operating profit before working capital changes 12,‘?31!,“! 3,836,553
Changes in operating assets and liabilives:
Met increase in Inans and advances to customarns (31,850,406} (15,338,090)
Met increase in olher assels (4.315,984) (123,883)
Met decreass (increase) in prepayments 41,328 (47 665)
Met increase in olher Fabilities 71,5933 78 724
Cash used in operations (23.,315,024) (11,484,161)
Income taxes paid {1,002,;643) (283,419)
Interast portion of the lease liability paid {167,108} :
Interast paid (2084, 203) (200, 80D6)
Mel cash used in operating activities (28,548, B7E) (12,078, 486)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and eguipment 16 {260,648) (226 ,55T)
Purchase of intangible assets 15 (550} (156, 464)
Mel cash used in investing activities !'."251.1551 (383,021)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares, net - 4,756,658
Purchase of treasury shares [2E6,088) .
Proceeds from closed bonds issued 4,143,883 6,328,992
Proceeds Inom bormowings 30,050,429 3,520,041
Proceseds from trust financing 14,766,321 -
Repaymeni of dosed bonds issued (7,028,000) (1,000,000}
Repaymant of borrowings {12 864 666) .
Regayment of trust financing (1,331 464) .
Princpla portion of the lease liatlty (127,B6T) .
Dividend pald (660,000) -
Mat cash from financing activities 26,682,550 13,605,882
Het increase/[decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (2,117, 524) 1,744 385
Cash and cash eguivalents al the baginning of the year 1 3,535,455 2.391,070
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1 1,417,931 3,535,455

The accompanying nates form an inlegral part of the financial siatements.


http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db

LendMN NBFI JSC
Statement of Cash Flow {Caont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
MNT'000 MNT 000
Operational cash flows from interest
Interes! receved 17,981,554 6,651,206
Interas! income & 18,118,680 6,065, 523
Hon=cash transaction:
Transfer from prepayment to property and equipman 87,500 -
Disposal of property and eguipment 16 0,735 -
Right of use azseis 1r ara. 111 .
Lease kability 17 are g1 -

Reconciliation of tha liabilities arising from financing activities is shown below:

Interest bearing
borrowings Lease liability

2018 2018 2018 2018

MNT 000 MNT'000 MNT'000 MHNT'000

Ag al 1 January 10,092 417 1,022,356 . .
Al recognition - - arg. 1 i
Proceads 48 960,633 9,843,032 . .
Repayment 121,224,130) {1,000,000) - -
Interest expenses curing tha year 4487133 511,934 167,108 -
interest paidlease payments (4,084,203) (290,006) (204,07T5) ;
Unrealised foraign axchange loss 28172 L % .
At 31 December 38,580,022 10,092,417 850,844 .

The accompanying noles fom an infegral par of (he financal slalemenis. 10


http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db

LendMN NBFI J5C
Notes fo the Financial Statements — 31 Decemnber 2018

1 Corporate information

LendMN NBFI JSC (tha "Company®) Is a joinl stock company listed on Mongolian Stock Exchangs ("MSE™)
and incorporated and domiciled in Mongalia. The Company was listed on the MSE an 14 March 2018, and
became & publicly raded company. The Company cperates under & non-banking financial institution
{"NBFI") special license Mo, 1/493 issued by Financial Reporting Committee ("FRC”} on 24 June 2015. The
Epecial license covers parmission for landing and online payment money transfer activites in Mongolia. On
20 March 2010, the Company obtained Trust service license and Factoring service license Mo, 45 issued
by the FRC. On 23 May 2019, tha Company nbtained Foreign currency transaction service license No 128
issued by the FRC.

Principaf activity. The Company provides 24/7T mobile phone based financial services to issue instant
loans for underfunserved people using ils LandMMN technology developed by AND Systems Tech LLC, a
fallow subsidiary incorporated in Mongolia. Tha LandMN tachnology is a fintech solution icansed by AND
Systems tech LLC. In 2018, tha Company enhanced iis oparational scope by faunching a new product,
Lend Waliel, which is a digital walial that enables customers o make various types of payments and
financial transactions through the Lend Waliel application.

The ultimate parent company (s AND Global Pte Lid. a fintech company incorporated in Singapore

The Company's ragistered address s Pearl Tower, Tounst stresl 34, 3rd khoroo, Chingseitel Descrict,
Ulaanbaatar, Mongolia.

The financial statemenis are presented in Mongolian Tugriks ("MNT™), and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousands, unless olherwise stated.

The financial statements of the Company wera@uthorisad for |ssuance in@ccordancs wilh the resclution
of the Baard of Directrs on 3 February 2020,

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation and statement of compliance. The financial statements have been preparad In
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRSs") (which includes all IFRS,
International Accounting Standards ("IAS™) and Inlerpretations) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“1ASB"). Thesa financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention excepl denvalive imancial ingtrumenls which have been measuned ai fair value. The prncipal
accounting polices applied in ihe preparation of (hess financial statements are =8l oul below. Thesa
policies have been consistently applied 1o all the periods presented, unless otherwise siated (induding
changes to the accounting policy as disclosed in note 3).

Financial instruments - Initial recognition. Finandial assels and liabilities, with the exception of loans
and advances 10 customers and other receivables, are initially recognised on the trade date, | e, the date
that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of tha instrument. This indudes regular
way trades. purchases or sales of financigl assets that reguire delivery of ssets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the markel pace. Loans and advances (0 cusiomers
and other recajvables are recognisaed when funds are transfarrad 10 the cusiomens’ accounts.

Financial instruments - Classification and iniial meogswroment. The dossification of Gnancal
Instruments al initial recognition depends on their contraciual terms and the business mode! for managing
theinstruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at the'r fair value except in the case of financal
asgats and financial liabilities recaorded at FVPL, transaction costs are added o, or subtracted from, this
armounl

Transaction cozis are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisiton, (ssue or disposal of
a fmancal mstrument, An incremental cost is one thal would nol kave been incurnsd il the transaction had
not tagen place.
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MNotes o the Financial Statements - 31 December 2019

2  Summary of significant accounting policies (Cont'd.)
Financial instruments - Classification and initial measurement (Cont'd ).

Transaction costs Include fees and commissions pald 1o agents (including employess acting as selling
agents), advisors, brokers and dealers. |evias by regulatory agences and securities exchanges, and
transfer laxes and duties. Transaction costs do nol inclede debl premiums or discounts, financng cosis or
intermal administrativo or holding costs,

Fair value |s the price that would be received 1o sall an asset or pald io transfer a Hability in an orderty
transaction between market partic:pants at the measurement dale. The best evicence of Tair value is pnoe
in an active markel. An active markeat & ona in which transactions for the assat or liahility take place with
sufficient frequency and volume 1o pravide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Fair value of financial instruments traded In an active markel is measured s the produdt of the guoled
price for the individual assel or Hability and the quantity held by the entity. This is the case even if a market's
normal daily trading volume (s not sufficiant to absorb the guantity held and placing orders 10 sell the
position in @ single transaction might alfect the quoted price.

Valuation technigues such as discounied cash flow modelis of models Dased on recent amm's length
lrarnsactions or consideration of linancial dala of the iIvesiess are used 1o measurs fair value of ceriain
financal instruments for which extarnal market pricing information is not available

Fair value measuremanis are analysad by level In the fair value hisrarchy as follows: {I) level one are
measuraments al quoted prices (unad usted) in active markeis for dentical assets or liabilies, (i) leved two
measurements are valuations technigues with all matenal inputs observable for the asset or liabiiity, ether
directly (that is, a3 prices) or indirectly (that is, derved from prices). and (i) level three measuraments ara
valuatons not based on solely cbservable marke! data (thal is, ihe medsurement requires significant
unobsendable inputs)

Financial instrimenis - Measurement of financial assets and liabilities. The Company classifies all of
its financal assels based on the business model for managing the assels and the assel's confractual lerms,
meaasured al sither:

= Fairvalue through other comprahansive income (FWOCIT), or

«  Fairvalue threugh prafit or loss (“FVPL")

Financial instruments - Loans and advances fo cusfomers. the Company messures (oans and
athvancas o customers al amortisad cost only if botn of the following conditions are met:

«  The financial assel i3 held within a business moded with the objecive (o hold financial assels in order
io collect confractual cash flows, and

« The confraciug terms of the financial assel give fise on specilied dales (o cash flows thal are soiely
paymenis of principal and interest (“SPFI7) on the pancipal amount outstanding.

The Company delermines il business model at the leval that best reflects how it manages groups of
finandal assals 10 achieve Its business objeciive. The Company’s business model is not assessed on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but al a higher leved of aggregated portfolios.

As g second siep of ils clagsification process the Company assesses the contractual berms of financial
assots o identify whather they mest the SPPI tesl. ‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the
fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the (ife of the finandal assel (for
example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount), The most significant
elements of Interest within a lending arrangemeni are typically the consideration for the timevalue of money
and credii risk

Amartised cost is the amount al which (he finanaal instrumenl was recognised at initial recognition less
any principal repayments, plus accrued interest. and for financial assets less any write-down for incurred
impairment losses. Accrued interest indudes amortisation of transaction costs deferred af initial recognilion
and of any premium or discount to maturity amont using the affective interest mathod ("EIR").
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2  Summary of significant accounting policies (Cont'd.)
Financial instruments - Loans and advances to customers (Cont'd.).

Accrued inlerest income and accrued interest expense, including both aceruad coupon and amortised
discount or premium (including fees deferred al origination, if any), are nol presanled separalely and ars
inciuded in the camying values of related items in the stalement of financial position.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which the Company is required io provide & loan wath
pra-specilied terms (o the customes

Financial liabilities - Debt issued and other borrowed funds. Debt issued and other borrowed funds
are contraciual obhgalions 1o local and foreign financial institutions.

After inltial moasuremaent, dobt issusd and other bomowed funds are subsequently measuned at amortised
cosi using the EIR. The amortised cost of debd issued and other borrowed is calculated using EIR by taking
into eccount any transaction costs related (o the ransaction

An analysis of the Company's debl issued and other borrowed funds are disclosed in Note 19,

Derivatives recorded at fair value through profit or loss. A derivative is a financial Instrument or other
coniract with all three of the following charadienstics

* lis value changes In response lo the change in & specified Intarest rate, financial Instrumant price.
commaodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates. credil rating or credit incex, or ather
variable, provided in the case of a nonfinandal variable that the variable is not speeific 10 a party 1o
the contract

* It requires no initial el mvesiment or an inilial net ivestment thal is smaller than wouwld be required
for other types of contracts thal would be expected to have a similar response lo changes in marke!
factors.

« It is sattded ata future cate

The Cormnpany aniers (nio derivative transsctions with finanzal institution. These indude cross cumency
swaps. Derivalives are recordad at falr value and camied as assets whan thair fair value s sosilive and as
liabilities when thelir fair value is negative. Changes in the fair velue of dervatives are induded in profil o
Ioss as gaini{loss) froen financal denvatives.

Derecognition of financial assets. A financial asset (or, whera applicabla, a pan of a financial assel or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when the rights o receive cash flows from the
financial assel have expired.

Derecognition of financial Kabilfty. A financial liability I3 derecognised when the obligation under the
liability i= discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
tha same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are subslantally
modified. such an excharge or modificaion is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liabilty, The difference between the camrying value of the criginal financial liability and
the consideration paid is recognised in profil or loss.

The effective interest method. Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
for &l fnancal (nstruments measured al amorised cost. The EIR s the rate thal exaclly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the axpected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
sharter period, to the net carmying amourd of the financial asset. The EIR (and therefore, the amo-tised cost
of the assa!) is calculated by taking Into account any discount or préemium on @cquisition, fees and oosts
tha: are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognses nierest ncome using a rate of retum that
reprasants tha best astimate of a constant rate of refurn over the expected e of the loan.
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2  Summary of significant accounting policies (Cont'd.)

impairment of inanclal assets. The adoplion of IFRS 9 has changed the Company's loan koss impaimaent
method by replacing LAS 38's incurred loss approach with a forward-locking ECL appreach. From 1 January
2018, the Company has been recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and other
debt financial essets not held at FYPL, together with loan commiimenis.

Cvarview of ECL method. The ECL allowance is based on the orodit Insses expected to arise over (he life
of the assel (Ihe Metime expected credit loss or LTECL ), unless there has been no significant increase in
credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months expected credit loss
(12mECL) The 12mECL s the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that resull from default events
on a fingncial instrument that are possible within the 12 monihs alter the reporting date. Whather a financial
instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since Initial recognition s celermined by considering the
changa In the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. Based on that, the
financial assets are grouped into Stage 1, Stagae 2, Stage 3 and Purchased or originated credit impaired
(PO, as describad below:

« Stage 1 When financial assels are irsl recognisad, an allowance | based on 12mECLs. Stage 1
finanda assets alsc Include facilities where the credit risk has improved, and the financial assets has
peen reclassifiad from Slage 2.

» Stage 22 When a financial asset has shown a significant increase in credit nisk since onginaton, an
allowance is based on the LTECLs Siage 2 financial assets also include faclliies, whare the credit risk
has improved, and the financial assets has been reclassified from Stage 3.

« Stage 3: Financial assets considered creditdmpaired. An allowance is bazed on the LTECLs.

« POCI: Purchased or originated credil impaired assels are financial asseis that are credil imparad on
initial recognition. POCI assss are recorded at fair valua at original recognition and interest income Is
subsaquently recognisad based on a credit-adjusted EIR. ECLs are only récognised or released 1o the
exten thal there is @subsequent changa in the-expected credit iosses.

The Calouiation of ECLs. The Company calculates ECLs based on three probability-weighted scenarios to
measure the expected cash shordfalls. A cash shorifall is the difference batween the cash flows thal are
due 1o an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects 1o receive. The
machanics of the ECL calculations are cutiined below and Lthe key glements are. as follows:

« PD; The Probability of Defau't is an estimate of {he likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A
defaull may only happen &l a certain time over the assessed perod, ¥ the fadlily has nol been
previously derecognised and is still in the porifolio

-  EAD: The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure al a fulure defaull date, laking Into
Bccount expected changes [ the exposure afler the reparting date, induding repayments of principal
and interesl, whether scheduled by contract or othenmse, expeciad drawdowns on commitied facilities,
and accrued interest from missed paymenis.

+  LGD: The Loss Given Default is an astimate of the |oss arising In tha case where @ defaull occurs al a
given time. Il is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the
Company would expect to recaiva. | is usually expressed as a parcentage of the EAD.

When estimaling the ECLs, the Company considers lhree scenanios (a base case, a bast case, and a worst
case). Each of Ihese is associated with diferent PDs, EADs and LGDs. as set oul in Note 22 3,

When estimating ECLs for undrawn loan commilments, the Company estimates the expectsd poction of
the loan commilment Lthat will be drawn down over its axpected life.

For outstanding logns and recenvables as at 31 Dacamber 208 and 2018, the ECL is presentad topether
with the loans and receivables, For undrawn loan commitments, the ECL is recognised within Provisions.

Forward looking information, In its ECL models, the Company relies on a broad range of forward-looking
information &s economic inputs, such as:

«  USD/MNT exchange rate

«  Percent change of the monthly inflation rale

= Monthly avarage probability of default rale of consumer loans of Mongolian commerdial banks
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impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
«  Monthly average probability of defaull rate of payroll lcans of Mongolian commercial banks

Collatera! The Company's loans and receivables (cash at banks and loans and advances 10 cusiomers)
are not collateral sed

Write-offs. Uncolleclible assets are written off against tha refatad impairment loss provision after all the
necessary procadures 1o recover the asset have been compleled and the amount of the loss has been
determined Subsequen! recovenes of amounts previously written off are credilad o impairment loss
account in profit or loss for the pedod.

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held al call with
banks. and other short-term highly liguid investments (primanly lerm deposits with banks) with onginal
maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are carred at amorised cost using the
efective interest method. Restricled balances are excuded from cash and cash eguivalents for the
purpoges of the cash llow slalameanis

Property and equipment. The property and equipment owned by the Company is staled al cost less
depreciation and provision for impairmant, where required. Costs of minor repairs and mainienance are
expensed when Incurred. Costs of replacing major parts or componants of premises and equipment llams
are capilalised and the rapiaced par & ratired.

Al the end of mach reporting perod managemant assasses whather there is any indication of impairment
of praperty and equipment. If any such indicationiexists, managemant-estimates (he recoverable amount,
which is determined as the higher of an asset's faic value l8ss costs to sall and 113 value Inuse. The carrying
amount is reduced 1o the recoverable amount and the impalrmeant loss & recognised in profit or foss for the
year An impairmant loss recognised far an asset in prior yesrs is reversed If thare has bean a change in
the estimates usad 1o determine the assel’s value in use of far value less costs 1o sall

(3ains and lossas on disposals datermined by companng proceeds with carrying amount are recognised in
profit or loss for the year (within olher operating income or expenses).

Depraciation on items of property and equipment is calculaled using the straight-ling method to allocate
thesr cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives:

£ in

Furniture, office equipment and vehicles 10 years
Compulers and technical equipment 3 years
Office renovation 3 years

The residusl value of an asset is the estimated amount thal Company would currentiy obtain from disposal
of ihe assa! |ess the estimated costs of disposal, if the assel were already of the ape and in the condition
expected gt the end of its useful Iife. The assets’ residual values and useful ives are reviewad, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each raporting pariod

Operating leases (Applicable before 1 January 2019). VWhera the Company Is 2 lessee n a leass which
does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental lo ownership from the lessor to the
Company, the iolal lease payments are charged to profit or loes for the year (rental expanes) on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease. The lease term is the non-canceliable period for which the lesses
has contracted o lease the asset together with any further terms for which the lessee has the option 1o
continue 1o laase the assel with or withoul further payment, when et the inception of the lease il is
reasonably certain thet the lessee will exercise the oplion,

When assets are leased oul under an operating ‘ease, the lease payments recesvable are recognisad as
rental income on a straight-ine basis over the lease tarm,
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Leases (Applicable after 1 January 2019). The Company assesses a! conlract inceplion whethar a
caniract is, or conteins, a lease. That is, if the contract corveys the right lo control tha use of an |dan ified
assel for 3 perod of time in exchange for consiceration.

Compeny a5 & lesses

The Compary applies a single recognition and measurement aoproach for all leases, excepl lor shon-lerm
leases and leases of lowsvalue assets The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease paymeants
and righi-of-usa assets representing the right to use the underiying assets.

() Right-cf-use assels

The Company recognises right-of-use assets al the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying as=el is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured ai cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any rermeasurement of lease katwlities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of leasa liabilities recognised, Initlal direct costsincurred, and lease
payments made &l or before the commencement date less any lease incentives receved. Righl-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straighl-ine basis over the shorer of the lease term and the estimated uselul
lives of the assets, as follows:

= Office building — 5 years ownership of the iaased assel ransfers (o the Company.

Afier lease commancament, & lesses shall measure the right-of-use assel using a cost model. Under tha
cosl model a lease asset is measured at cost less accumulated deprediation and acoumulated impaiment
The righl of use asset is subject to iImpaimment. Refer to section “Impaimment of nen-financial assels” and
also nole 17 for Right of use assets.

i Lease hiabiitlas

Al the commencameant date of the lease, the Company racognises lease liabllities measured at the present
value of lease payments 1o be made over the lease lerm. The lease payments indude fived payments
{incuding in substance fixed payments) less any |ease incentives receivable, variable lease payments thal
depand on an Index or a rale, and amounts expacied (o be paid under residual value guarantees. Vanable
leasa payments that do not depand on an index or a rete are recognised as axpenses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the perod in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
OCOUrS.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremantal borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicil in the lease is nol readily ceterminable.
After the commencement dale, fhe amount of leasa liabilities i increasad (o reflect the accretion of interest
and reducad fortha lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of leasa liabililies is remeasured
if there is a modification, a8 change in the lsase tarm, a change in the leasa payments (e.g., changes fo
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used o determine such |ease payments) or a
change in the assessmenl of an option to purchase the underlying asset. Pleass reler to note 17 for details

Intangible asseis. The Company's intangible assets other than goodwill have definite uselul lives and
primarily inciude capitalised licensas.

Computer software licenses acquired are capltalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring

them 1o use. Infangible assets are amorlised using the siraight-ine method over their useful lives:
LUsefuyl lives in vears

LendMN technology licenses (Lending and wallet systems) 10 years

If impaired, the carrying amount of inlangible assets is written down to the highes of value in use and far
yvalue less costs 1o sall
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income taxes. Income taxes have been provided for in the financigl statemenis in accordance with
legislation enacted or substaniively enactad by the balance esheel date. The income tax charge compnses
current tax and deferred tax and is recognised in the profil or loss unless il relates to transactions that are
recognised in the same or a different period in other comprehansve incoma or directly in agquity. Cumrent
tax is the amourt expecied to be pald o or recoverad from the taxation authorities in respect of taxable
profils or losses (or the current and prior ponods Taxablo profits or losses are based on estimates i
financial statements are authorised prior to filing relevant lax returms. Taxes other than on Income are
recorded wilhin operaling expenses.

Deferred income tax i3 provided using the balance sheet |:ability method for tax loss carry forwards and
lemporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabiliities and their carrylng amounts lor
financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax batances are measured &l tax rates enacted or subslantivety
enacted &l the and of the reporling period which are expected to apply to the panod when the temporary
differences will reverse or the tax loss carry forwards will be utilised. Deferred tax assets for deduciible
lemporary differences and tax loss carry forwards are recorded only 10 tha extent thal it is prodabla that
fulure taxable profit will be available against which the deductions can be utiised.

Uncertain tax positions. The Company's uncertain tax positions are reassessed by management at the
end of each reporting penod, Lishiites are recorded for income tax positions that are determined by
managemeani as mare likely than not to result in additional 1axes being (evied if the positions were to be
challenged by the tax authosities. The assessment is based on tha interpratation of tax laws that have been
enacied or substanlively enacled by the end of the reporting period and any known courl or other rulings
on such msoes Liabdities for penalties, interest and taxes other than on income are recognized based on
managament's bast astimate of the expenditure reguired lo sattle the obligations at the.and of the reporting
period.

Value added tax {VAT). Managemern! has assassad that the Company has no VAT liabil ties arising from
non-financial services activities, while finandial services activities (such as lending) are exempled from VAT
basad on Value Added Tax Law &f Mongolia. Thue, tha Company was nol registered for VAT as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

Provisions for fiahilities and charges. Pravisions for |abilities and charges are non-financial fiabilites of
uncertain timing or amount, They are accrued when the Company has a present legal or constructive
chbiigation as a result of past events. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefils will be required to setlie the obiigation, and a reliable eslimate of the amount of the obligation can
ba mada,

Other liabilities, Other liabilities are accrued when the counterparty has parformed its obligations under
the contract and are carmed al amortised cost.

Income and expense recognition, Interest income and expanse are recorded for financial mslruments olner
than credil-impaired assals on accruals basis using the effective interest method. This method defers, as pert
of inderest incoma or Expense, all (ees paid or received betwesn the panies (o tha contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rale. transaciion cosis and all other prermiums or discounts Feas integral to the
effective interest rate Include origination fees received or paid by the entily relsling to the crealion or
aoquisition of a finandal assel or issuance of a financial liabilty, for example fees for evaluating
creditworthiness, negotiating the lerms of the instrument and for processing ransaclion documants.
LendMM fee income. charged on each loan disbursemaent, is also part of the efectve interesl rate although
itis nol callad inlerest incoma

VWhen a financial 2ssat becomes cradit-impared and s, therefore, regarded as ‘Slage 3 in the ECL modeds,
tha Company calculates interest incoma by applying the effective imerest rate to the net amortised cost of
the financial assal

If the financial assets cures and Is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reveds 1o caloulating interest
incorme on & gross basis. For purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, the Company
calculates interes: income by calculating the credi-adjusted EIR and applying thal rate to the amortised
cost of the asset

17


http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db

LendMN NBFI JSC

Notes to the Financial Statements = 37 Docember 2079

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Cont'd.)

lncame and expense recognition (Cont'd,). The credit-adjusted EIR is the interast rate that at onginal
recognition, discounts the estimated future cash flows (including credit losses) to the amortisad cost of the
POCI assets

All pther fees, commizsions and other income and expense ilems are generally recorded on an aocnal
basis by reference to completion of the specific transaction assessad on the basis of the actual service
provided as a proporiion of the lolal services 1o be provided.

Share capital and reserves. Ordinary shares are dassifiad as equity. Incremental costs directly attributabie
lo the igsue of new shares are shown in equity as & deduclion, net of lax, from the proceeds.

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (“treasury shares”) are recognised using cost method and
deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recogrised in profit or loss on a purchasa, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity Instruments. Any difference between the carying amount and the consideration,
il reissued, 15 recognised in the share préemm.

Foreign currency transifation. The functonal currency of the Company is a cumency of the pnmary
economic environmenlt in which the sntily operates. Thus, the Company's functional currency and
presentation currancy is the national currency of Monpolia, Mongolian Tugrik ("MNT™)

Monetary astets and llablities are wranslated Intoc the Company's functiona curency at the official
exchange rale of the Bank of Mongolia ("BOM®) al Ihe respective end of the reporting period. Foresgn
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settiement of the transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets snd liabiliies into the Company’s functional curency 3 year-apd-official exchange rates
of the BOM are recognised in profit or loss, Trangiation al year-end rates does not apply to non-monetary
items tha! are measurad at histoncal cosl,

Offseiting. Flnancia! assels and |abililies are offsel and the net amount repored in the statements of
financial position only when there is a 'egally enforceable right to offset the recognised amaunis, and there
i5 an inlention (o either seltie on'a nal basis, or 1o realise the assel and sefiie the lability simullansously

Staff costs and related contributions. Wages, salares and ofher salary relaled expensas ere recognised
a5 an axpense in tha yaar in which the associated services are rendered by the Company’s empioyees. Shor
term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when services
rendered by employess that increasa their antitiamert to fulure compensated absances. Shor term non-
accumulating compensated absences such a5 sick leave are recognised when absences ooous. As requined
by law, companies in Mongofia make confributions (o the govamment pension scheme - Socal Security
and Health Insurance Fund. Such confribufions are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss as
incurred The Company has no legal or constructive obligation to make pension or simiar benefit payments
beyond the payments lo the statutory defined contribution scheme

Share-based payments. AND Gicbal Pre.Lid (the ultimate parent company of the Company) granted equity
settled share-based paymeants io key employes(s) of the Company through an Employee Stock Qwnership
Pian in 20718, The farr value of these eguity seited fransacions s determined at grant date and is
recognised as an employes expense in the statement of profit or loss, with the comesponding increase in
aquily, on a siraighl-line basis over tho vesting period. Non-market vesting conditions ars includad in the
assumplions about the number of oplions that are expecled to vest. Al each reporting dale, the Company
revises ils estimates of the number of options that are likely o vest. Any adjustmenl from this revision is
recognisad in the statemant of profit o loss with a cormesponding adjustment to equity, Tha Company does
nol operate any cash-seifled share-based paymenl schemes or share-basad payment transactions with
cash altarnatives as defined In IFRS 2.

Segment reporting. Segmants are reporied in @ manner consistant with the internal repoarting provided to
the Company's chief operaling decision maker, Segmenia whose revenue, nesuit of assets are ten pancent
ar more of all the segmenis are reported saparabely.
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Eamings per share. Basic earnings per share is calculaied by dividing the met profit for the pear
atiributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the perod. Diluted earnings per share |5 calculated by dividing the net profit for the
period aliibutable to ordinary equity holders of the Compary (after ad usting for interest on the converible
praferance shares and interest on the converdibie bond, in each case net of tax, f any) by the waighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the pariod plus the weighted average number of
ordinary shares thal would be issued on the conversion of all the dilultve potentia ordinary shares inilo
ordinary shares.

Tranzactions with related parties. A related party is a person orantity that is related (o the Comparny:

(a) A person or a dose membear of thal parson’s family is related o 5 Company f that pareon:
{iy has control or joint control of the Company,;
(i} has significant influence over the Company, or
{iii) is @ member of the key managament personnel of the Company.

(o) An entity |s related to @ Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(I} The enlity are members of the same group (which meagns that each parent, subsidiary and feliow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i} Ono entity is an associale or joint veniure of the other entity (or an associato or joint vantune of o
mambar of a group of which (he other antity is a manmbar),

(i) Both entities are joint venlures of (he same third pary.

(v} One entity Is a joint venrture of a third entity and the othar enfity is an associate of the third entity.

{v] The enlity i5 a post-employment banafil alan lor the benelil of employess of ihe Company. If the
Company is tseif such a plan, the sponsoring empioyers ane alsa felated to the Compary.

{wi) The enlity isscaniroled or jointly controlled bya persan identified in (a)

(vil)A person identified in (a) () has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
managemeant personné of the entily (or of a-parent of the enlity).

{villiThe. entity. or any member of a group of which it is a part. provides key management personnel
services (o ihe Company or 1o the parent of 1he Company

In considering each possible relaled party relalionship, aftention is direcled to the substance of the

relationship, not merely the legal form. All material transactions and balances with the relatad parties are
dizclosad in the reléevant noles (o the inancial stalements and (he detall is presenled in Note 25

3  Changes to accounting policy and disclosures

The accounting policias adopled are consistant with thosa of the previous financial year, axcept for the
followang standards and amendments o IFRS thal became effective as of 1 January 20180

« [FRS 16 Leases

+ |FRIC Interprefallon 23 Uncertamty over income Tay Treatmernd

« Amendments o IFRS 3 Prepaymeant Features in Nagative Compansation

« Amendments o |AS 28 Long-ferm Interests in Associates and Jon! Ventures

« Annual Improvements (2015 Amendments to (FRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 11 Joint
2017 cyde) Arrangements, IAS 12 Income taxes, IAS 23 Borrowing costs

= Amendments 1o [AS 19 Plan Amandment, Curfailmeant or Satifemant
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3  Changes to accounting policy and disclosuros (Cont'd.]

1. IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS 16 sals out the principles for the recognition, measurement. presentation and disclosure of leases
end requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheot model similer to the
accounting for finance leases under [AS 17, The siantard inciudes two recognition exemplions for lessees
- leasas of lowvalue' assels (e.g., parsonal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., (eases with a lease
tarm of 12 months or leas). At the commencemeant date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability 1o make
lease payments (ie.. the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underiying asset
during the lease term (l.2, the nght-of-use assel) Lessees will be required (o separately recognise the
interasl axpenss on tha loasa Fability and the doprociation oxpones on the right-of-Uso assoet

Lessaes will be also required to remeasure the leasa |iabllity upon the occurrance of cartain evenls (&.0.. a
changa in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
uvsed to determine those payments). The lessee will gpenerally recognise the amcemi of the remessurement
of the leasa kabilily as an adjusiment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 Is substantially unchanged from previous accounting under [AS 17,
Lessors will confinue o classily all feases using the same dassification princple as in IAS 17 and
distinguish between hwo types of laases: operating and finance leases.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual pedods baginning on or after 1 January 2019, The Company adopled IFRS
16 using the modfied retrospective approach, with the date of intial appliestion’ol 1 January 2018 The
Company applied only fo coniracts that were previously idenfified as lease applying IAS 17 as at date of
Initial apolication.

2. IFRIC-Int 23, Uncartainty cverincome Taxes Treatment

The Interpretation addresses tha accounting for incomea taxes when 1ax treatmants involve uncertainty that
affects the application of A8 12 Income Taxes I does nol apply 1o laxes or levies oulside the scope of
I1AS 12, nor does it specifically inciude requiremants relating to interest and penalties associated with
uncerain lax resimaents. The Inferpretation spedlically addresses the lollowing

= Whether an enfity considers uncertan lax treatments separatety

« The assumpiions an entity makes about the examination of tax trestments by taxation authorities

* How an enlity determines taxable profit (1=x loss), lax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax oredils and
tax rates

* How an entity considers changes in facts and circumslances

The Company determines whether io consider each unceriain lax Ireaiment sepasalely or togeiher with
ong or more other uncartain tax reatmants and usas the approach that better predicts the resolution of the
unceriainty

The Company applies significant judgement in identifying uncertainties over income 1ax treatments, Since
the Company operales in a single lemilory, il assessed whether the Interpratation had an impact on s
financial etatements.

Upon acoption of the Interpretation. the Company considered whether it has any uncertain tax positions,
particularly those relating Io fransfer pricing. The Company's flings in difersnl junsdictions include
deductions refated o ransfer pricing and the taxation suthorities may challenge those tax realments, The
Company determined, based on its tax compliance and transfer pricing study, that il is probabie that its tax
treatments (including those for the subsidiaries) will ba accepted by the taxation authodties The
Interpretation did not have an impad on the financial stalements of the Compary
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3 Changes fo accounting policy and disclosures (Cont'd.)

3 Amendments o IFRS 9 Prepayment Feslures wilh Negative Compensalion

Under IFRS 9, & debl instrument can be measured al amorfised cost or af fair value through other
Comprenansive inconma, provided that the contraciuat cash fiows are “solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding’ (the SPP oriterion) and the instrument 2 held within (he
appropriate business model for that dassificaton. The amendments to IFRS B darly that a financial asset
passes the SPPI gritenon regardiess of the event or creumslance thal causes the early termination of the
confract and imrespective af which party pays or receives reasonabie compensation for the eady termination
of the confract.

The amendments should be appiied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2019, with earlier
applicalion permitled. These amendmenis have no impact on financial statements of the Company

4, Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle (issued in December 2017)
Thesa improvements include:
« (AS 12 lcome Taxes

The amendments clarify that the income lax consequences ol dividends are inked mone direclly to past
transactions or events that genersted distrbutab'e profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an
entity recognises the income lax consequences of dividends in profil or loss, other comprehensive ncome
or equity according to whera tha entity originally recognised those past transactions oF events,

An entity apphas those amandments for-annual repocting periods beginning.en or after 1 January 2019,
walh early application |s permitled. When an enillly ficst apphes those amendments, il apples them o the
income tax consequences of dividends récognised on or after the beginning of the aarliest comparative
period  Sincel the Company's cumrent prachce is in line with thesa amendments, the Company does nol
have any effect on iis financial stslements.

* |AS 23 Borrowing Casfs

The amendmenis clarfy that an enlity treats as pari of general bormowings any borrowing originally made
io develop a qualifying assel when subslantially all of the aclivilies necessary (o prepare thal asset for ks
intendad usa or sala are complete.

An enlity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity applies those amendments
for annual reporting periods bagirning on or afler 1 January 2019, with sarly application permitted. Since
the Compamy's current practice s in hne with Lhese amendments. e Company does not have amy effect
on its financial statements.

The Standards and Inlerpretalions thal are ssued, bul not yel effedive, up lo the dale of issEnce of the
Company's financial statements are disclosed below, The Company intends to adopl these standards, if
applicable, when they become effective.

= Amantmants o IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 Saw or Cordribion of Aseefs belwseen an imvestor and s
Asnpciate or boinf Venfure 3

= [FRS 17 insurance Conlracts 2

» Amendments 1o lAS 1 and IAS 8 Dafindtion of Matanal 7

« Amandments o IFRES 8 1AS 30 ard IFES 7 imaras Rals Banchmark Reform 1

Amandmenie (o References to the Concaplual Concaptuaf Framework 1
Framesork in IFRS Standards
= Amendmends (o IFRS 3 Definidion of & Busmess 1

=
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3 Changes to accounting policy and disclosures (Cont'd.)
5 i not T o,

' EfSactive for aanual periods beganimg an or afer T Jeauary 2020

' Efectve lor annual perioos begawning on o @iler 1 Jonuary 2021

Y The pMectire oate of iz amendmend (3 ndelindely posiponed by ASE, but an antly shal aank siapds the
armendmments ausl apply e prospeciinalr.

4 Critical accounting estimates, and judgments in applying accounting policies

The Company makes estimales and assumptions that affect the amounts recognised in the fnancial
statements and the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and
judgments ara continually evalualed and are based on managemenl’s experience and olher factors,
including expectations of fulure events that are believed to be reasonatle under the dircumstances.
Management also makes cerain judgmants, apart from those involving estimations, in the process of
applying the accounting polices. Judgments hat have the maost significant effect on the amounts
recognised in he finanaal stalements and estimales thal can cause a significant adjusiment to the carrying
amount of assats and [iabilibies within the next financial year include:

Impairment losses on loans and advances lo customers. The measurement of impaimment losses bolh
urder IFRS 0 across all categories of financial assels requires judgement. in particular, the estimation of
the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a
significant increase in credil risk. These estimates are driven by & number of faclors, changas In which can
resull in different levels of allowances, The Company's ECL cafoulations are oulputs of the modss with a
number of underlving assumptlions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their imMerdependencies.
Elements of the ECL models thal are consldensd accounting jedgements and estimales include:

+  Staging of financial assets when their EOL 18 assessed on a collectve basis;

»  Development of ECL models and the choice of inputs;

L Delermination of associalions Detween macroeconomic SCenanns and, eoonomic Npuis, such as
USD/MNT exchange rates and inflation rates, and the effect on PDs, EHJ! and LGDs: and

= Selection of forward-looking macresconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, 1o derive the
econom|e Inputs (nto the ECL model.

It has been the Company's policy 10 regularly review fis models in the context of actual loss experience
and pdjus! when necessany

Managemeni uses estiimates based on hislorical loss experience lor assels with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar o thosa in the portfolio when scheduling its fulure cash Rows.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating bolh the amount and timing of future cash flows
ara reviewed regularly 1o reduca any differances betwesn loss estimates and acual loss experience

Intangible assets. The intangibie assels ol the Company consist of licenses for the LendMN Lending and
Wallet Systems’ exclusive use right in the territory of Mongolia for a term of 50 years. Managemen
estimates the uselul life o be 10 years based on their best estimate of the expectation of the system usage.
Changes in the expactad usage and tachnology developments could impadt the economic usaful lives,
which would lead to revision of emostization period in the future.

Lease. The Company entered into & new office bullding lease contract on 23 Cclobar 2018 and recognired
right of use assels. Management eslimates the lease period lo be 5 years in line with leass contract hased
on their best estimate of the expectation of the asset usage. The lease liability is initially measured at
presant value of the lease payments, discounted at the discount rate for the lease. The Company cannot
readily determine tha intarast rate implict in tha leasa, therefora, it usas its incramental bomowing rate
("IBR") to measure lease (iabilities. The IBR is the rale of interest thai the Company would have to pay (o
bormow over similar term, and with similar security, the funds necassary to obtain an assel of a smilar value
io Ihe nght to use asset in 8 smilar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company
"would have to pay”, which reguire estimation whan no obsarvable rates are available or when they neasd
o be adjusied o refiect the lease term and condition of lease,
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4  Critical accounting estimates, and judgments in applying accounting policies (Cont'd.)

The Company estimaies the IBR using observable inputs (such as market inlerest rate). The estimated
IBR is 18% p.a minimum of interest rate of fixed asset purchzse loan of five top commercial banks in
Mongolia with same lease period.

Az al date of Initial application, the Company has two office lease contracis. The one is new office leasa
which iha Company made tho lease confract 10 October 2078, howover, tho commencoment dato s
partially started in October 2018 and fully started in February 2019 due io leasshold improvemant
ecperalion. The other is old office lease which was made in 2017 and ceased in June 2019, The two-manth
lease payment is MNT 14 million. The management estimated fransition differenca related io the IFRS 16
Iz mssessed (o be insignificant. Therefore, the Company did not recogrize the transiton difference on lease
In its financial statements as at 1 January 2019,

Management estimabes thal the lease period shall nol be early lerminated and extended due to an
unforesean fulura change.

§ Nel interest and similar income and segment information

During the years anded 31 December 2018 and 2018, tha Company was engaged in a single business
sagment, which is issuing instant loans to the individual borrowers in Mongolia. Information reported to the
Company's chiel decrsion maker, for the purpose of resgurces allocation and performance assessment,
focuses on the cperating results of the Company as & whole as the Company's resources are integrated
and no discrate operating segment financial information s available Accordingly, no operating segment
information is presented. As the Company's major operafions and customers are localed in Mongolia, no
further geographical segment information is provided. Therse has been no single extemnal customer thal has
contributed revenue exceeding 10% or more of the Company’s revenue during tha years ended 21
Doecember 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

MNT'0DO0 MNT'0D0
Interest income
Interest iIncome on bank accounts 202 402 177,796
LendMN fee income
Logns and adv ances to customers — LendMM syslam 18118 680 6,985 523
Total interest and similar incoma 18,321,082 ) _f;]i_:t._ﬂ
Interest expense
Interest expanses on borrowings (&,8487.133) (511.934)
Interest accration o iease |lability (167,7108) -
Total interast and similar expenses _ _]dlﬁllidj] {511,934}

LendMM fee Income represents the one-time fee charged on loan disbursements made through the
LendMN system  This fee incoma represants par of the effective interast rate in accordance with IFRS and
i5 deferred over the life of the respective Ioan.

During the year, included in interest expense on borrowings are MNT 167,108 that represents accrefion
inierest on lease liabililies, refer o Kole 17
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& Credit loss expense
The table balow shows the impairment chargas on financial assels for the vear recorded in profil or loss

2019 2018
MNT 00O MNT 000
Impairment Loss
impairment on loans and advances o customers [Nola 12) 1,592,006 382,310
Impairment on undrawn commitment |Note 20) 28, T0E 16215
Total Impairment loss 1618802 408,525
T  Administrative and operating expenses
2018 2018
MNT 000 MNT 000
Sigfl costs 1 8582 989 934 286
LendMN system maintenance/service fee (Mote 25) 1,362,523 oraT
Advariising and markeling senices 625,745 695 640
Bank charge 476 524 211,058
Dapreciation of property and equipment and right-of-use assets 221,072 59 464
(Mote 15 and 17)
Professional services 302 823 191,073
Social security contributions 229 566 113,828
Amoriization of inangibla assets (Nole 15) 46 332 33022
Maintenance axpense 35,360 9.726
Rental expanse _ 19,404 106,081
Snaro-based contribution = 57,348
Other expenses 262,787 107,71
Total administrative and operating axpenses 5,565,125 3,278 064
B  Other income/{expenses), net
2019 2018
MNT 000 MNT 000
Other incorme 13,313 0
Diher expansa {182,213) (79,119
Linrealised foreign exchange [osseas, net {197,266) .
Realizad foreign axchange lossas, net {216,016) (32T
Gains from change in fair value of dervalive Tinancial instruments 130,642 -

Total other losies (451,539) (79,446)
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9 Income tax

9.1 Incoms tax expenses

Income taxes recorded in profit or loss for the year comprisas the following:

2019 2018
MNT* 000 MNT 000
Currant tax:
Current Income tax 1,146,248 305,037
Deferred tax:
Relating lo ongination of femporary differences (Nole 9.3) (25.062) -
Income tax expense for the year ~ 1.421,186 305,037

The Company provides for income taxes on the basis of inoome for financial reporting purposes, adjusted
for ilems which are nol assessable or deductible for income lax purposes. The income lax rate for profils
of the Company is 10% for the first MNT 3 billion {(2018: MNT 3 billion) of taxable income in a financial year,
and 25% (2018 25%) on tha sxcess of taxable income over MNT 3 billion (2018: MNT 3 bifion) in

accordance with Mongolian tax legisiation.

A reconcilizlion of iIncome (ax expenze applicable to profil belone tax al the statulory income tax rate 1o

income tax expense at the effectve income tax rate of the Company are as follows:

2019

MNT'000

Profit before tax 6,031,375

Tax at stahiafy rate of 25% (2018 10%) 1.507.844
Tax effect of:

- Non-deductible expenses 83,702

- Special tax rate {30,360)

- Effect of where applicable tax rale is lower than 25% (450,000)

Income tax expense for the year 1,121,186

201B
MNT 000

2,865,350
286.535
18,502

___ 305,037

The efectve ircome (ax rate for the Company Tor the year ended 31 Dacember 2019 is 18.60% [2018:

10 E5%),

9.2 Income tax liabilities/{assots)

2018
MNT' 000

305,037
{293,419)

2019

MNT 000

As at 1 January 7,680
Income tax expanse for e year (Mote 8.1) 1,148 248
Income tax paid during the year (1,002 543)
As at 31 December 151,395

7,600

9.1 Deferred tax balance

Deferred tax assetsyliabilites) were recognised for daductible or waxable timing cifferences resuiting from
the unrealised exchange difference arising from monetary assets and liabilities, fair value gain on the

darivative finandal insfruments and lease asset depraciation and inlares! accration.
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8  Income Tax [(Coni'd.)

9.3 Deferred tax balance (Cont'd.)

Recognised
2019 Opening in profit or Closing
balance (losses) balance
MNT 000 MNT 000 MNT 000
{Note 8.1)
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Unrealised foreign exchange losses - 34.97T 34,977
Lease assel depreciation and interest acoration - 13,200 13,209
. 48,186 48,186
Deferred tax llabllities In relation to:
CGain on change in fair value ol dervative
financial instruments ) (23.124) (23,124)
. (23,124) (23.124)
Deferred tax assets - 25,062 25,062

10 Eamings per share

The Company has no dilutve potential ordinary shares, therefore, the diluted eamings pec share is equivalent
o the basic samings per shara,

2019 2018

Profit or Joss, represanting 1otal comprehensive

income for the year (net of taxes) altributable o 4,910,188 2,560,313
equity holders of the Company (MNTD0D)

Weightod average number of ordinary shares for

basic and diluted sarmings per share® 787 458 537 760,000,000

Earnings per shara (MNT) 6.16 33T

2019 2018

Earnings per share MNT MNT
Equity holders of the Company:

Basic earnings per share 6.16 33T

Dilded samings par share 6.16 337

*“The weighied-average number of ordinary shares take inlo account tha weighted-average effact of
movement in treasury shares during the year, refer to Nate 21.2.

11 Cash and cash egulvalents

31.12.20149 NA22018

MNT D00 MNT D00
Zash on hand 914 1,088
Cash at bank 2,381,282 4,217,062
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,382,196 4,218,150
(=) Funding for wallet balance (Nete 20}  [964,265) (B62,695)
Taotal cash and cash equivalents for statement of cashflow 1,417,931 3,535.455
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11 Cash and cash sguivalents (Cont'd.)

Cash al bank balances are currenl eccounls placed in commerncial banks operaling In Mongolia and are
nod collseralised. The carrying amount of cash and cash equvalants approximates fair value, Current
accounts outstanding as at 31 December 2019 are placed &t inlerest rates ranging between 0 0%-9 75%
p.a. (31 Decomber 2018: 0.0%-0.76%). Cash at bank as al 31 December 2018 includes a short-term time
deposit of MNT 500 milllon which bears interest rale of 13% p.a and malured on 27 Jamnuary 2019

The Company estimated the expected credit |oss on cash and cash equivalents in accordance with IFRS 9
as al 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018. As most of the cash and cash equivalents are demand
daposits, the estimated expected credit loss s assessed to be insignificant, Therefore, the Company did nol
recognize (he expected credil losses on cash end cash equivalents in ils financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,

The cash balance of individual wallet is restncted and s accourted saparately as it is not used as a funding

source by the Company, making it available on demand, Cesh &nd cash equivalents coresponding (o the
wallat balance 55 at 31 December 2019 ks MNT 964,265 thousand (2018 MNT 632,695 thousand)

12 Loans and advances to customers

31.12,2019 41.12.2018

MMNT 00O MNT 000
Consumer Inans issued through LendMN system, gross 31,008,354 19,642 822
Less: Allowances for ECL (Wote 22 3) {1.661,718) (443 556)
Total loans and advances to customers 498457676 | 19,199,366

Based on the business mode of the Company, all batrowers of the Company using the LandMMN apglication
ere individuals who use micro loans 1o finance their consumplion and short-term finance needs

As at 31 December 2019, The Company pledged total of MNT 10,400 000 thousand of performing loan
portfolio {2018: MNT 8,000,000 thousand) as coliaterals for credil line and the loans received from other
financial insiMules. Pleass relar (o Note 18

12.1 Impairmenl allowance for loans and advances to customers

The Company assesses impamment of loans in accordance with IFRS 8. Under the general approach, the
Company ciassifies the loan portfolio inlo Stage 1, 2 and 3 as follows, and calculate probability-weighted
forvard-looking PDs and LGDs separalely for each stage. The details of caloulation and policies about ECL
allowances are explained in Note 22.3,

Stage 1! Loan portfolio on time + Loan portfolio past due less than 31 days
Stage 2' Loan portfolio past due by 31-90 days
Stage 3. Loan portfolio past due by more than 50 days

Allowances for impairmant losses for loans and advances fo customars as at 31 Dacembear 2018 and 31
December 2018 at each stage are as follows:

Drawn Forward- Forward- ECLs as part of
EXRAHAS ST tone exposure looking PD looking LGD Loan Balance
At 31 December 2019
Stage 1 48,210,148 0.77% 56.22% 208,775
Stage 2 B78.532 58.26% 56.22% 320,154
Stage 3 - 1.B20714 100.00% 56.22% 1,022,789

51,009,394 1,551,718
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12.1 Impairmant allowance for loans and advances to customers (Cont'd.)

Drawn Forward- Forward- ECLs as part of
exposure looking PD looking LGD Loan Balance
At 31 Decomber 2018
Slage 1 19,019,885 0.81% 65.28% 100,125
Stage 2 288,524 62 B3% 65.28% 106,021
Stage 3 363.708 100.00% B5.28% 237,410
19,642,922 = 443,556
The table below shows credit quality of the fotal loan portfolia.

2019 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
MNT' 000 MNT 000 MHNT 000 MMNT D00 MHNT 00D
Ferforming ioan 45,210,148 - - 48,210,148 18,0719 885
Nan-performing loan « 9532 1,620,714 2,790,246 623.037
Total 48,210,148 978,532 1,820,714 51,009,394 15,643,922

An analysis of changes in gross camying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation (o the
loan and advances to customaer is. 8o lollows:

2019
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MNT'000 MNT 000 MNT 000 MNT' 000
Gross amount as at 1 )
January 2018 19,019,885 250 320 383,708 19,642,922
New assats originated or purchased 439,329 846 . - 430,320 846
Assels derecogned or repaid {407,194 307) (151,800) (133,333) (407,.479.440)
Transfer o stage 2 (2.945,276) 2,945,276 - -
Transfer to slage 3 - (2,074,273) 2,074,273 -
Write-offs - - {483 034) (483 034)
At 31 December 2019 48,210,148 978,632 1,820,714 51,000,394
Gross carmmying amount as at 1
January 2018 4,245 872 49,140 9,720 4,304,832
Mew asseis originated or purchased 152 526,404 - - 152 526 404
Assets derecognized or repasd (136, 114,242) {778,706 (285 36E) [1a7.188.314)
Transfer to stage 2 [1,638,249) 1,638 249 - -
Transter lo stage 3 - (648 354] 649,354 -
At 31 December 2018 18,019,885 250,329 363,708 19,642,922
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2019 100,125 106.021 237,410 443 556
Mew assets originated or purchased 1,802 524 . . 1,802 524
Assels derecognizec or repaid (1,763,360) {49,666) (74,901) (1,887.927)
Transler o stage 2 (12.755) 12.755 - .
Transler o stage 3 - (6T8.658) BTE,B5E .
Impad on year end ECL of exposures
transferred between stages during the {17.759) 920,700 B65.558 1.577.499
year
Write ofis ot = (483.804) (483.,934)
At 31 December 2018 208,775 320,154 1,022,789 1,551,716
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12 Loans and advances to customers (Cont'd.)

12.1 Impairment allowance for loans and advances (o customerns (Cont'd. )

2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
MMNT 000 MNT 000 MNT 000 MNT'000
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2018 21T 21,600 7469 51,245
Mew assels orginated o purchased 802 D26 - - 802 926
Assets derecognized or repaid (714,996) (318,354) (192.803) (1.226,153)
Trensfer to slege 2 {8,624) g624 . -
Transfer to stage 3 - (265.472) 265472 -
Impact on year end ECL of exposures
transfermed batween stages dunng the (1,358) 659,623 157,272 815537
year
At 31 December 2018 100,125 106,021 237 410 441,556

Movemant analysis for impairmernt losses for [oans and advances to customer as follows:

M.12.2019 3.12.2018

MNT 000 MNT 000
At 1 January 443,556 51,245
Charge for the year (Note B) 1,592,006 382,310
Writlen off duning the year (483.934) .
At 31 December 1,551,718 443,556

12  Dervative financial instruments

The Company entered inlo dervalives for foreign currency risk managemen! purpose, as axplained in note
2 in the summary of significant acoounting policies. Darivatives held for risk management purpose Include
Cross currency sweps and do not meel the hedge acoounting requirement The table balow shows the fair
values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assels \ogether with thelr notional amounts. The
notional amount. recorded gross, is the amount of a derivative's underying assel, reference rate o index
and i the basis upon which changes in tha value of derivatives are measured. The notiona amounts
indicate the volume of transactions cutstanding at the year end and are indicative of neither the market risk
nor the oredil risk.

Fair valug of Motional
31 December 2019 assets amount
MNT 000 MNT 000

Derivatives
Cross ourrency Swaps 130,642 9,621,950
Total derivative financial instruments 130.’5#!_ B.E!'IE

Slarting from NMovernber 2019, the Company entered into catsin short-temm choss currancy Swap conlracts
with a commercial bank. The Company's short-term USD/MNT swaps are ranging in maturity from 6 1o 8
months. The swap agreements are designed lo manage the risk of variability of cash flows denominated
in USD from the borrowings received from foreign financial instilutions. As at 31 December 2013, the
Company had shor-term cross curmency swap agreements with a commercial bank in place with nolional
amount of USD 3,520,000 or MNT 8,621,990 thousand.

.....
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13 Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd.)

Al the iniation, the Company pays USD funds and receives MINT funds at the adjusled spol rate with
haircut from 2% fo 3%, and subssquently upon maturity the Company receives LISD funds and pays MNT
funds at agreed forward rate (forward rates ranging from MINT 2,733 o MNT 2.971.06). Pleass refler bo
Mote 24 for falr value disclosure of derivative finandal instruments. Risk management strategy and how it
ts applied to manage risks disclosed in Note 22

14 Dther assels

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

MHNT D00 MNT 00D
Time deposl 4 373 832 -
Oriher recelvables 165,500 120,285
Supply malerials 30,324 4138
Taxes recalvables other than on income 1,859 -
Total assets 4,571,318 124,423

Time deposit as at 31 December 2019 represants a shorl-term time deposit denominatec in LUSD and
ambuniad o USD 1,600,000 al Trade Devalopment Bank which baars interest saloe from 5% o 5.4% pa
and partially matures on 28 April 2020 and 14 May 2020. The other receivables include accrued interest
roceivabie of the bme deposit for an amount of MNT 127 479 (howsand

The Company esimaied the expedled credit loss on bme deposil in acoordanca with IFRS O g3 &t 31
December 2019, The time deposit has been pledged on borrowings from commercial bank, refer to Note
18 {ii). As the Company considerad thal there isno exposure at defsill, the éxpecied credit loss is assessed
to be insignificant. &ccordingly, the Comgpany did not recognize ihe expectad credit losses on tmea deposit in
its financial Aatemeants for the yaar ended 31 Decembar 2019,

15 Inlangible assets

2019 2018
MNT' 000 MNT'000
At cost
At 1 January 456,454 300,000
Additions __450 156,464
At 31 December 457,014
Accumulated amortization
Al 1 January 658,680 34 748
Charge for the vear (Mote T) 46332 33,932
At 3 Decembar 115,012 68,680
Mot carrying valuo 342,002 387,784

The iMangible assats of ihe Company consist of licenses for the LendkiN syster’s exclusive rights of usa
in the territory of Mongolia for lending activities and wallet transactions purchased from AND Sysiems Tech
LLC, a fellow subsidiary. Tha landing applicatian or the ariginal platform was purchasad in Dacember 2016
from AND System Tech LLC, which has customer on-bogrding, credit scoring, banking back-end, customer
support and reporting modules and the LandMi Application. The one-time license fes for the LandMi
sysiem's axclusive right of use was MNT 300,000 thousand.

Upon a launch of e-wallel service in 2018, the Company entered into an agresment with (15 related company
AND Systems Tech LLC on 1 November 2018 to purchase the axclusiva Aght of use of the wallet
application for al! wallst related transactions. The wallet application is an upgrade 1o the lending spplication
but containing the original funchionality of lending wilthin. The one-time license fee for the LendMN wallet's
exciusive right of use was MNT 150,000 thousand.

30
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15 Intangible assets Intangible asset (Cont'd.)

Both lrcense agreements are nol cancellable unless such is mutually agreed or the Company no longes
holds its lending licenses. Although both license periods are for 50 years, LendMN system is amortised
over 10 years and 1he e-wallet applicabon & amodtised over the remasning wselul (ife of the LandMN syslam
bazed on the management's best estimate of the useful [fe of each licenss.

16 Proparty and eguipment

Furmiture,
office Computers
equipment and Dffice

& vehicle equipment rencwvation Total

MMNT 000 MNT 00O MNT D00 MHNT 000
At 31 December 2019
Al cosl
At 1 January 2019 60,695 146 238 123.310 330,244
Additions** 45,743 111,855 180,443 338,148
Disposal® . . {123,310} {123,310}
At 31 December 2019 106,438 258,194 180,448 545,080
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2019 8,643 44 199 19,351 72,193
Charge for the year [Note T) o 8GO 72,480 36421 118,580
Disposa* - ) (31,575)_ (31,575}
At 31 December 2019 18,512 116,488 24,187 158,198
Net carrying amount 87,926 141,705 156,251 385,882
At 3 December 2018
At cost
At 1 January 2018 41,651 62,0386 - 103,687
Additions 19,044  84.203 123,310 226,557
At 31 December 2013 60,695 148,239 123,310 330,244
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2018 3,310 9419 - 12.729
Charge for the year (Note T) 5,333 34 780 10 351 50 484
At 31 December 2018 8,643 44,199 18,351 72,193
Net carrying amount 52,052 102,040 103,959 258,051

There is no borrowing cost capitalized and the properties and aguipment are not pledged for any of the
Company's liabililies

*In February 2019, in relation 1o movement to 8 new office, the Company transhemed a leasehald
improvement made in Lhe old office lease with carrving amount of MNT 91,735 to AND Syslems Tech LLC,
a related party, in exchange for sattement of account payahla.

*Addition dunng the yvear includes transfer from prepayment of MNT 87,500 (2078; mi),

N
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17 Lease

The Company has enferad into & lease contract for a new office bulding in October 2018 for § years term
The Company's obligations under |18 fease is sacured Dy the lessor's Litle to the leased assels, Genarally,
the Compamy is resiricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assels. The lease contract has an
extansion opton with that the Company can exiend the leass term by 2 years without notification ard
prepayment. For a termination option, the Company can cease the leasa with 2 monihs prior notice from
expiry date without additional payments. Plaase refer to MNote 4 for managament judgament on lease asset.

Sel oul below are the carrying amounts af right-of-use asssts recognized and the movemsesnis during Lhe

pErod
Office
building
MHNT' 000
Al recognition in February 2019 aTe 711
Depraciation expenssa (Mote 7) (202 482
As at 31 December 2019 ) 776,219

Sel out befow are the carrying amounts of lease liabilites {incluced under intérest-bearing loans and
borrowings) and the movements durmg the period:

2019

MNT 00O

At recognition in January 2019 ara.T11

Accration of interast [Mole 5) 167, 108

Paymenis {294.975)

As at 31 December B50,B44

Current 170,427

MNon-current Ga0.417
The maturty analvels of laase liability |5 disclosad In Mole 22 4

The following are the amounts recognized in prafit or ioss:

2019

MNT" 000

Depreciation 202 492

Inleresis 167,108

Total amount recognized in profit or loss 269,600

The Company had olal cash outfiows for leases of MNT 204 975 thousand in 2019,

18 Prepayments
M.122019 31.12.2018
MNT'000 MNT 000
Prepayment for new offica - 87,500
Other 683 48163
Total prepayments 6,835 135.663
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18 Bomowings
31.12,.2019
MNT" 000
Interest rate p.a Curment Mon-curmant Total
Closed bonds £} 11 24%-18.5% 2,507,756 1.093,408 3,601,164
Loans [ii}y 1. 1-19.2% 18,333 B46 2,800,000 21,133 648
Trusd financing (i) 10%-19% 11633883 2211320 13845212
Total borrowings 32,475,285 6,104,737 38,580,022
31.12.2018
MNT 000
Interest rate p.a Curreni Mon-current Total
Closed bonds () 12%-18% 6,565,017 - 6565017
Loans fv) 17.75%-18.2% 2007358 152004 3,527 400
Total borrowings 8,572,378 1,520,041 10,092,417

(i) As at 31 Decamber 2019, the Company has an issued 2,435 unils of cosed bonds with par value of
MNT 1,000,000, with quarterdy and’or bi-annual coupon interest payment at a range of 17-18.5% per
annum and malures belween 26 February J020 and 17 December 2020 with 7 repayments, And
Systems LLC, the parent company has issued & guarantee letter with amount of MNT 110,000
thousand for some dosed bond buyers. On 5 December 2018, the Company has issued addifional 4
units of closed bonds with par value of USD 100,000, with guarterly coupon interest payment at 11.24%
per annum, and malurity of 2 year The bond matures on 5 December 2021 and payment is guaranteed
by And Systems LLC.

(i) On2 November2018, the Company cbisined MNT 1.200.000 thousand oysrdraft loan from Trade and
Development Bank of Mongola whereby the Company pledged MNT 1,200,000 thousand of
performing loans and advances o customers and MNT 1,450,000 thousand of future cash inflow to be
colleciad l;ﬁgh its current accounts at commercial banks against the fadiity. The lcan matures on 2
Novembar

As at 31 December 2019, the Company recesved 0ans amounting to a8 MNT 6,409,000 thousand from
commercial banks and other linancial inettules, whereky the Company pledped MET 4 600,000
thousand of performing loans and advances to customers and USD 1,600 000 of term deposil. The
loans mature between 10 Marcn 2020 and 18 September 2020 with 4 repaymems.

On 31 Octlober 2018, the Company obtaineds a MNT 5,000,000 thousand credil ine from And Systems
LLC, waih monthly coupon Interest payment calculaied al 24 44% per annum, and malurty of 2 year
and facility matures on 31 October 2021, As at 31 December 2019, the Company ulilised 2, 800,000
thousand of its credit line loar,

As 8t 31 December 2019, the Company has @ MNT 3,795,000 thousand and a USD 1,752,000 |oans
from And Sysiems LLT, with quarlerty andior bi-annual coupon inleresi payment calculaled at a range
of 11.1-21.11% per annum, and matures betwean 14 February 2020 and 20 November 2020 with 16
repaymeants.

{iii) As al 31 December 2019, the Company has a MNT 4,748,000 thousand trust financing from third
partias with montaly, quarterty and/or bi-annual coupon interast payment at a range of 16.5-19% per
annum, and matures batwean 9 April 2020 and 28 April 2022 with 16 repayments, The Company
pladged MNT 4,600,000 thousand of performing loans on the trust financing from a domestic entlty
The Company has received addifional USD 3 287 470 trust finencing from third parties, with monthly,
quarterty andior bi-annual coupon inferest payment at a ranga of 10-18.57% per annum, and maturity
in betwean 28 April 2020 and 7 May 2022 with 20 repayments.
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19 Borrowings (Cont'd.)

(v} ©On 10 Movember 2017, the Compary isseed 1,000,000 unils of dosed bonds with par value of MNT
1,000, with quariery coupon inferes! payment calculaled af T6% per annum, and matunty of 7 year and
subsequently extended by 3 months, &l of the dosed bonds were fulfy sold on the same day to one of
the minarity shareholders of the ultimale parent company. The bond s (o mature on 11 February 2019,
Per Board Resclution No. 18/14 on June 04, 2018, the Company has issued additional 5 400 000 wnits
of dosad bonds with par value of MNT 1,00, with quartery andfor b-annual coupon interest payment
calculated al & range of 16-17% per annum, and maturity between 18 June 2019 and 13 November
2019 with 7 repayments.

iv} On 20 December 2018, Ihe Company obiained a MNT 2,000 000 thoasand coedit ling from cormmerncial

hank, whereby the Company pledged MNT 4,000,000 thousand of performing loars and advances o
customars and current accounts al commercial banks agairet tha facility. Tha faciity ke to maturs on
20 December 2020,

On 31 December 2018, the Comparry reoeived a MNT 2,000,000 (housand logn from commansal bank,
whereby fhe Company pledged MNT 4000000 thousand of peforming loans and advances lo
customers and MNT 2,000.000 thousand of future cash inflow to be collectad through (ts current accounts
al commercial banks against the fadllity. The loan is matured and repaid on 25 December 2019,

20 Other liabilities

31122018 31122018
MNT 000 MNT 000

Dther financial llabilities:
Payables o other companies and individuals 1.076,32= 795,742
Othwr payables 168,627 39,858

Total other financial llabilities T 1,244,851 B35,600

Other non-financial liabilites:

Taxes payable ofher than income tax - T.922
Provision for fulure possible tax liabilities 6,429 6.420
Provision for undrawn commiimend [Note 22 3) 45,710 19,004
Total other non-financial liabilities 52,139 33,355
Total other liabililies 1,297,090 _ BG8,955

Payables to other companies and individuals include payables or cash balance of indivicual e-wallet
account holders as well 8s merchant wallet balances. lolalling MNT 964,265 thousand (2018 MNT 682 695

thousand), The remaining balance accounts for payables due to partrering marchants and other parties

Diher peyables include dividend payable of MNT 140,000 thousand to AND Systems LLC, the parent
company. Please refer to Note 21.1 for dividand declaration information.

In compliance with IFBS 9 slandards, the Company calculaled expecltod cradil foss for ondoown
commitments that are highly potential to become loan products. Movements in the provision for undrawn
commitment is as follows:

2019 2018

MNT'000 MNT DDD

At 1 January 16,004 2,789
ECL charges on undrawn commitment (Mote 6) 26,706 16,215
At M1 December 45710 19,004
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20 Other liabilities {Cont'd.)

Movemeanis in the provision for fulure possiola tax liabilities is a5 follows:

2019 2018

MNT D00 MNT'000

Al 1 January 6.429 15,805
Lititised tax provision during the yoar - {9,378)
At 31 December 6,429 6,429

21 Share capital and reserves

21,1 Share Capital

The Company is a listed company established under the Company Law of Mongolia. The lodal authorised
and issued share capital of the Company represants 800 000,000 ordinary shares (2018: 800,000, 000)
with par value of MNT 10 (2018 MNT 10). All issued ordinary shares are fully paid. Each ordinary share

CAMMEE ONe wobe,

On 14 March 2018, the Company issuod by hsting 200, 000,000 ordinary chares al MNT 26 par-shara on

the Mangolian Stock Exchange through IPO, thus raised equity of MNT 5,000,000 thousand,

MNumber of Shara

outstanding capital

shares MNT' 000

At 1 January 2018 600,000,000 6,000,000
New shares issued 14 March 2018 by ksting 200,000,000 5,000,000
Listing redated direct costs - (243,1417)
At 31 December 2018 and at 31 December 2019 800,000,000 10,756,859

The immediate parent company of the Company is AND Systems LLC and the ultimate paren! company is

AND Global Pte.Ltd. a fintech start-up company incorporated in Singapore.

The shareholders and their percentages of ownership are as follows:

31.12.2019 3122018
AND Systems LLC T5% T5%
Publiz 24 5% 28%
Treasury shares 0.5% -

100% 100%

In January 2019, the Company declared dividend of MNT 800,000 Ihousand to the shareholders (2018:
nily,
21.2 Treasury shares

The Company repurchased 4 000,000 shares at average of MNT 86.52 per share, representing the market
price, for a tolal amount of MNT 266,086 thousand babween 19 Apdl 2009 and 27 Juns 2019 for

consideration of a staff remuneralion purpose.
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21 Share capital and reserves (Cont'd.)
21,3 Other reserve

In June 2018, AND Global Pte Ltd, the ultimate holding entity of the Company, granted share awards lo
the Company’s key managament personnal. The share award 18 accountad for as an equity-settied share-
based paymenlt fransaction as the Comparny does not have an obligation lo settle the award. The award
was conditional upon continuous employment with the Compeny and achievernent of non-markel Ley
parformanca indicalors for ihe financal vear ended 31 December 2018, No movement has been made in
other reserve during the year.

22 Risk management disclosures
22.1 Introduction

The main risks inherent in the Company s operations ara cradit risk, liouidity sk and operational risk, all of
which are conirolled by the Company's Chief Executive Officer, The primary goa’ of risk management is lo
allocate capital (o business segments commensurate with their nek/reward profiles and 1o maxmise the
Company’s risk-adjusted return on capltal through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and
maonitonng, subject 1o risk limits and other confrols. This process of risk management is cntical o the
Company’s continuing profitabilty and each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk
exposures relating o his or her responsibilities.

The independenl fish control process does not indude business risks such as changes in the anvironmant,
tachnology and industry. They are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning process.

The Company has a risk managament framework which i$ not designed 1o eliminate the risk bul to oplimise
the risk and relurn trade off. The rsk managemant framework in place s lo-ensure that:

(i) Indwicisals wha manage the risks clearly understand the requirement and measurement system;
(i} The capital allocation Is consistent with the risk of exposures; and
{ili} Tha Company = performance objectives are alignad with tha risk appetite and tolarance.

22.2 Risk management structure

The Chief Executve Officer 18 currently responsbla for the overall risk management approach and for
approving the risk poficy and the credit palicy which specify risk appetile and lolerance. On 10 May 2018,
the sharaholder appointed a board of directors with @ members. In April 2018, the Cheef Executive Officar
appoirted a sanior risk manager whose main objective will be setling up the overall risk management
structure of the Company. The Board has appointed an internal audit on 21 August 2018,

22.3 Credit risk

Impairment assessment

The main credit risk of tha Company arises from loan losses from ils fending aciivities. The credit risk can
arisg from 1) the oradit Imil approval process and 2} the handliing of loan Ifecycle after the loan
disbursement. The credit risk from the credil limit approval process can arse from approval of an
inaporopnate credit amount with inappropriate fee level (o & customear due (o Inaccurate credit soorng of
the LendMN System's eredit scoring module. The credit scoring of the Company is based on a machine
learning algorthm that constantly improves its oredil assessment accuracy based on its own historical
credil data induding late repayments and overdue status of past loans. The machine learning system based
on deep leaming technology instantly updetes its credil scoring algorithm as more credit information is
gathered by the system itsslf and adjusts the credit scoring algarithm prospactively.

Management of the Company sels 1he credil amount intervale and fes |evels and the LendMMN sysiem
makes the credit decision automatically and constanily updales its credit scoring algorithm. Management
manitors the overdue ioans based on the tergeted percentage for each interval of ovardue lcan as 1o
overdue more than 1 day, 30 days, 60 days or 20 days.
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22 Risk management disclosures (Cont'd.)
22.3 Credit risk (Cont'd.)

The Company considers a loan default and therefore Stage 3 (credit-mpaired) for ECL calculations in al
ceses when the loan becomes 90 days past due.

The credit risk for the Company can also arise after the LencMN Sysiem’s credil decision and the
subsequant loan disbursemants. The acoounl recesvables departmant togather with the call center manitors
the overdue loans on a daily besis by idenlifying any trends in (he repayment behaviour of it's customers.
The accounl recaivables department ansures thal tha overdue loan notification module of the LendMN
System is operating as effective as possible and updates the nolification module if a trend is noted in the
repaymant hahaviour of its customars. The call center supports the account receivables department by
providing timely and accurate rapayment guldance (o cuslomers under the direct supervision of the sccount
receivables department

Dafiniior of defaul

The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore stage 3 (oredit-impairment) for ECL
calculabons in all cases when the borrower becomes % days pasl due on its contractual paymeants.

The Company’s PD estimation process

The Company adopied IFRS 9 in 2018. The expected credit loss modal under IFRS 3 applies to bank
deposits, (oans. debl securiies and frade receivables that are recorded at amortized cost or fair value
through othar comprehensive income, plus lease receivables, contract assels and loan commiiments and
financial guarantas contracts thal are nol measured at fair value through profil.or Ioss,

Short term logns and sdvances fc cusiomers impairmanl Bssessment

The Company uses its historical leyel of laan loss provision and considerad the following forward-looking
macro-aconoimic factors to come up with a foraward-looking probability-weighled PD:

Monihly % change of the USDIMNT exchange rala,

Monthly average exchange rala of USD/MMNT (Absaclute valua);
Monthly inflation rate,

Percantage point change of monthly inflation rate:

Monthly unemployment rate.

Monthly sverage salary,

Monthly Gini coefficient; and

To determine which macro-eoonomic variables am tha bast predictors of the forward-looking PD for the
Company's loan product, the Company has run a linear regression analysis on the monthly PD for the last
34 months against (hose macro-economic vanablas and the final model consisted of the monthly average
exchange rate of USD/MNT as an Independent variable which is considerad as the best predictor.

Exposure & dafault

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the financial instruments subject
to the impairment calculation, addressing both the borrower's ability to increase its exposure while
approaching default and potential early paymems oo

Loss given default

The Company caloulated historical LGDs on a8 monthly basis on its historical loan data between March
2017 and December 2019 based on he following formula:

LGD=1-{Recovery of |nans over 80 days/Any loan over 80 days)

ar
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Risk management disclosures (Cont'd.)
22.3 Credit risk (Cont'd.)

The same regression analysis that was run on the historical PDs has been conducted on (he historical 34
menthly LGDs and the final mode! consisied of the manthly USD/MNT exchange rate as en independent
varniable. The model passed bolh the guanhtative and qualative thresnholds statistically significant
coafficient at confidence (evel of 95%.

The Company calcudated the ling! LGD rale by taking the weighted avarage of the three LGDs while the
probabiliies of sach scenario are 25%, 45%, and 30% (2018: 10%, 40% and 50%] lor the best, the base
and the worst case respectively. Managaement has given 45% of probability for tha base case scenario in
LGD for 2019 calculation 85 Moody's report named “Rating Action, released in Ociober 2010 states that
“Mongoiia is reted B3 and steble oulipok™ where Moody's expects Momngolian foreign exchange resarves o
ba sufficien! to mest external debt obligations and growth o remain relatively strong, This resulted in a
prohabillty-weighted forward-looking LGD of 56.22%.

As the average lcan term Is 26 days, the time value of money s ignored for he expecled credil loss
calculation

Craol conversion faciar

The credil conversion factor |s estimatad at 43% based on the average factor during the kast 34-month
historical data

Significant morease n credil risk

The Company continuausly monitor all assels subject to ECLE In arder to determine whether an instrument
or & portfolia of instruments is subject B 12mECL or LTEGL, Iha Company assesses whelher there has
been significant increase in credi risk since initial recognition. The Company conskders an expasure to
have significantly increased in credif risk when {he loan balance becamas avardue by 314 days, where tha
loan will be classifind 10 Stage 2.

If the loan balance becomas overdus by 90 days, the Company considers a cefaull has occurred and the
loan will be dassified o Slage 3

Anslysiz of inputs o the ECL mope!

An overview of the approach 1o estimating ECLs is set oul in Nole 2, Summary of Significan! Accounting
Policies and in Note 4. Critical Accownting Estimates. and Judgements in Applying Accounting Folicies. To
ensure completeness and accuracy. the Company obiains the dala used from third party sources (Mongol
Bark, Matonal Statistics Office etc.) and verifies the accuracy of inputs to the Company’ ECL models
including determining the weights atiributable to the mulliple scenarios.

The following table shows the values of the key forward looking economic vanables/assumplons used i
each of the economic scanarios far the ECL modal

Base case
, Best case (min  (average of Viorsl case
Macro-economic variablesEstimated PDs of nast 34 nast 34 (max of past
manths) months) 34 months)
:.mﬂhulymwv:‘aug? exchange rate of USDIMNT 0.01% 3.18% 6.30%
Estmated PDe 0.00% 148% ToER

Collateral and other credit enhancemants
Cash al banks of the Company and loans and advances to cusiomers issued by the Company are not
collateralised (Note 12)
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LendMN NBF] JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2019

Z2 Risk management disclosures (Cont'd.)
225 Markel risk

Market risk is the risk thal the fair value or fulure cash flows of financial instruments will fuctuate due 1o
changes in market variables such as interest rales or foreign exchange rales. The Company manages and
monitors this risk element using sensitivity analyses and Company does nol have significant market nisk
dug to the shori-term nalure of its loans and advances.

22.6 Interest rate risk

The interest rata risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market 'merest rates. The Company’s interest rate nsk arises primarily from lcans
and advances to customers, shori-term and long-lerm bank loans and closed bonds. The Company does
not use hedge insiruments to manege inlerest rate nsk. The Company's exposures to interest rate risk for
changes in interes! rates primaily relates to the Company's fixed rate current accounts in the bank, loans
and advances 1o customers and dosed bond and bank loans Az of tha reparting date. the Company has
not adopted sansitivity analysis to measure Interest rate risk due princpally lo the fact thal the Compary
has no floating inlerest rale financial assels and financal liabdities on finanas! reporting cate.

22.7 Operational risk

Operational risk is the probabiity of loss arising from system (Elure, human eérmors, rauvd or extemnal events
When conirols Taill (o perform, operational disabilites San cause damage 1o reputation, have legal or
reguigtory implications, and lead to financial loss. The Company cannol efiminate all operational risk, but
through a dual control framework, segregation of duties between front-office and back office functions,
controlled acoess lo systems, authorisation and recondiliation procedines. slaff =ducabon and assessment
procasses, tha Company seeks 1o manape oparational risk.and reduce it.

228 Foreign cumency exchange rate risk
The Company defines the foresgn currency exchange rate risk as potential loss due lo adverse changes

in currency exchange rates and Their implied volatiity. The Company seds risk limits on the level of
exposure by forelgn cumencies, which are monitored on & frequent basis sgainst the approved risk

appelite
31.12.2018 31122018
Liabilities Assels Liabilities Assets
- —— MNT 000 MNT 000 MNT 000 MNT 000
Foreign exchange dominated 15,020,435 14 926,187 . 3,895

Foreign exchange sersitivity anaiysis

The Company is mainty exposed lo USD (referred 1o as “foreign currency”). The following table details the
Company’s sensilivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the MNT against the foreign currency. The
sansitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusls
their translation al the penod end for a 10% change in foreign currency rate. This analysis assumes all
other nsk variables remalned constant.

2019 2018
amges MNT000 MNT'000
Eflect on prodit /{loss) before tax +-10% 541,069/ (1,202.682) 389/ (389)
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MNotes to the Financial Staterments — 31 Decamber 2019

23 Contingencies and commitmenis

Legal proceedings. From fime bo Lime and in Lhe ommal course of business, clams agains| (he Com pany
may be receved. On the basis of own eslimates and intermal professional acvicae, managament is of the
opinion that no material losses will be incurred and accordingly no provision has been made in thess
financial statements.

Tax legisiation. Mongolian tax, currenoy and cusioms legisliation is subject 1o varying inlerpretations, and
changes, which can ocour frequently. Management's interpretation of such legisiation as applied to the
transactions and activity of the Company may be challenged by the relevant authorties.

The Mongolian tex suthoriies may be iaking 8 more assertive posiion in their interpretation of the
legislation and assessments, and il is possible thal transactions and activities that have not bean
challenged in the past may be challanpad by tax authorities As a result significant additional taxes.
penalties and interest may be assessed. Fiscal periods ramain open to review by the authorities in respect
of laxes for five calendar years preceding the vear of review. Under oarain circumslances roviews mey
cever longer periods.

The Mongolian tax legisiation does not provide defindive guidance in cartain arsas, specifically in arsas
such as VAT, withhoiding tax, corporate income tax, personal Income lax, lransfer pricing and other areas.
From time io time. the Company adopts interpratations of such uncertain areas that reduce the overall fax
rate of the Company, As noted above, such tax positions may come under helghtenad scrutiny as a result
of recenl developments in administralive and court practices The impact of any challenge by the tax
authorities cannol be retiably estimated; however, It may be significant to the financial posifion and'or the
ovarall operations of 1he entity.

Management befieves Ihat its interpretation G the relav slation is approonate, and the Company's
positions related to tax and other | Wﬂﬂnﬂlbﬂrw Management believes that tax and lagal
risks are remole at present. The management perfanms regulsr re-assessment of tax risk and its position
may change in the future as a result of the change in conditions that cannot be anticipated with sufficient
cerlainly al present

Credit related commitments. Tha primary purpose of these instrumenis is to ensure that furds are
available 10 & cuslomer g3 reguired. Commitments o extend credil represent unused portions of authorsed
credil line m the forms of LendMN instant loans. Even though these obligatons may nol be recognisad on
the statemant of financial position, they contain credit risk and, therefore, form part of the overall risk of
the Company. The Company can be exposed fo loss in an amount equal fo the total unused credil
commitments. However, [he likely amaount of loss is less than ha tolal unusad coMIMEtMEnts SNCce Most
sommitments 1o exiend creadit are contingant upon customars maintaining specific credit standards

The nominal gross values of undrawn credit commitment of the Compary as of 31 December 2019 was
MNT 7517, 004 thousand (31 Decamber 2018: MNT 3,610,064 thousand). An allowance Tor empainmeanl
of MNT 45,717 thousand was recognized as ot 31 December 2018 (37 Decembar 2018: MNT 10,004
thousand) for the credit related commitmeants Refer to Note 20 and 22.3 for datail,

24  Fair value of financial instrumenits

The methods and assumptions applied in determining fair values,

Fair value measuremends are analysed by laval in the fair value heerarchy as follows: (i) level one are
measuramants at quoled prices (unadjusted) n active markats for identical assats or liabilities, (i) leval
two measurements are valuations techniques with all material inputs ohservable for the asset or Gability
gither direclly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and (i) level three
measuremants are valualions nol based on observable marked data (that s, unobservable npuls)
Managament applies judgmant in categorising financial Instrurmants using the fair value hierarchy. If a fair
value measurement uses observaeble inpuls thal requine significent adjustmeent, hal measurement 5 a
Level 3 measurement. The signficance of a valustion input is assessed against the falr value
measurement in ils enfirety.

a9
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24  Fair value of financial instruments [Cont'd.)

Fair value of derivalive linancial Habilily s calegorised under Level 2 where the Company determines the
fair valua basaed on valuation technique (|.a. mathamatical models) using market obsarvable inputs shown
bedow

= Owernighl repo of Bank of Mongolia;

» Mongollan government bond yisld;

Tha following table demonstrates the sensitivily to a reasonably possible change in observable inputs, with
gll other variabdes held constant.

31 December 2018 Change Effect on profit before tax
MNT'000

Overnight repa of Bank of Mongolia L -0.5% 20,651/ (20,651)

Mongolian government bond yield +/-0 5% (21,744V 21,744

Due 1o the short-1arm nature of all financial instruments (except noted above), the fair values of financial
instruments approximate their carrying amount

25 Ruolated party transactions
Balances and Iransactions with relatad parties are disdosed below.

The key management compansation for 2019 and 2018 are presented below:

2019 2018

MHNT 000 MNT D00

Salaries and bonus 344 506 128,633
Share based contribution (Note 7) . §7.348
Eoctal nd heslth insurance 43,715 15 418
88,221 201,387

Al 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2018, the putstanding balances wilh relaled parlies were as
follows:

31.12.2019 M.12.2018

Noles MNT"000 MNT000

Loans to related parties-LandMN syslam i} 1,726 5,690
Loans from parent company {iiy 12,238,420 -
Receivables from a retated company {lil} - 43,130
Payable o related parties (i} 360.307 -

The income statement items with related parties for the year (hen ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
wene as foliows:

2018 2018

MNT 00D MNT 000

Interast income from loane lssued-LendMN system i 1,818 1,084
LendMN system maifenance fee (Note T) fiv} 1,362 523 o797
Consulting service fee iwi) 43,573 .
Interes! expense on the dosad bonds (v} = 4 603
interesi expense on the loan (i} 810,491 g

42
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25 Related party transactions (Cont'd.)

(i) Loans io redated parties — LendMN sysiem consist of oulstanding loans o key management
individuals of the Company and its immediate parent company disbursed via e LendbiN systiem.
During lhe year ended 31 December 2018, the Company disbursed MNT 53,470 thousand loans o
key managerrents, out of which MNT 51,745 thousand were fully repaid and MNT 1,726 thousand
are outstanding as st 31 December 2019 with acorued interest of MNT 189 thousand (2018: MNT
180 thousand].

(i} The Compary received loans from iis parent company, AND Systems LLC for an amount of MNT
22 780,741 thousand, out of which MNT 9,186,674 wara fully rapaid and 11,384,127 ars outstanding
as 81 31 December 2018 with accrued interest of MNT 201,279 thousand,

As at 31 December 2019, the Company also has trust funding of USD 320.000 from & Board membes.
The accrued interest is USD 1,333,

il Recelvables from a related company, AND Systems _LC and AND Systems Tech LLT, ame
unsacured, inlerest free and recafvable on demand.

Payable to related parties include an accrued interest payable on recelved loan for an amount of MNT
204,924 thousand, dividend payable to AND Systems LLC for an amount of MNT 140,000 thoussnd
gnd MMT 15,383 thousand unsecured and inlerest Tee payable.

{iv) Effective from 1 July 2017, the Company signed a mainlenance and sarvice agreement with AND
Systeme Tech LLC for the LendMN systam’s an-going maintenance. The monthly Tes payvable o AND
Systems Tech LLC under this agresment is determined based on Lhe number of lending ransactions
guring a month and is payable on a monihly basis. In addition, on 1 November 2018 the Company
signed an acditional maintenance and service agreement with AND Systems Tach LLC for the wallet
syslam's on-going maintenance and support sanfices. The number of wallet fransactions (exduding
lzan relabed ransact ong) wall ba Lhe bosis of the fescaftwlation and payable on o monthly basis.

(v] The Company issued unsecurad closed bond (o ils parent company, AKD Systems LLC on 1 March
2018, interest at 12% per annum and was repayabie within 1 manth. The accrued interast of the bord
was MNT 4,603 thousand and was paid fully with the principal amount on 18 March 2018

{v/) During the year, the Company recaived consulling services on some loans received from AND
Systems LLC which equal to 2.2% of loan amount

26 Events after the end of reporting period

The following subsaguant evenls occurmed sfter the end of the reporting year and before the approval of
these financial stalements.

On 9 January 2020, The Company established a new subsidiary incorporated in Mongolia named Super
Up Wallet LLC with 100% cwnarship.

Management believas that this subseguent evert would not require any adjustments in the financial
stalemenls.

27  Mongolian translation

These financial statements are siso prepared in the Mongolian language. In the event of discrepancies or
contradictions batwesn the English version and the Mongolian version, tha English version will prewail,



http://cbs.wondershare.com/go.php?pid=5239&m=db

